
 CITY OF LEMON GROVE  

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING  
Monday, October 22, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

 
Lemon Grove Community Center 

3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA  
                                                                                                                                            
Any person who wishes to address the Planning Commission regarding any of the items on this 
agenda must fill out a speaker’s form (available at the entrance) and give it to the Planning 
Commission Clerk.  When called, please come to the podium and state your name. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Roll Call 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Approval of the Minutes  

1. September 24, 2018 Regular Meeting 
 

Changes to the Agenda: 
 
Public Comment: (Speakers will have three (3) minutes to discuss items on the agenda. Note: In 
Accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not scheduled on the agenda; 
however, the Planning Commission may not take any action at this meeting.  If appropriate, the item will be 
referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

 
Consent Item(s): None. 

 
Public Hearing(s): (Note to Speakers: The Chair will ask each speaker to remain at the podium until the 
Commissioners have had the opportunity to ask questions about his or her testimony.  APPEALS TO THE 
CITY COUNCIL MAY BE FILED ON FORMS AVAILABLE IN THE OFFICE OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES DEPARTMENT.  APPEALS OF DECISIONS MUST BE FILED WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS.) 

  
2. Public Hearing to Consider Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004 of the Development 

Services Director Determination Regarding the Expiration of the Land Use Authorization for 
a Nonconforming 15-Bed Boarding House/Independent Living Facility Located at 2555, 
2561, and 2571 Crestline Drive in the Residential Low/Medium Zone. 
 
 Reference:  Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner 
  

Recommendation:  Conduct the public hearing; and Either adopt a Resolution 
(Attachment B) denying Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004, upholding the 
Development Services Director’s decision that the Land Use Authorization for a 
nonconforming 15-bed Boarding House/Independent Living Facility or adopt a 
Resolution (Attachment C) approving Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004, 
overturning the Development Services Director’s decision. 

 



City of Lemon Grove Planning Commission Meeting                                                     October 22, 2018 
 
 

3. Public Hearing to Consider Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0004; a Request to 
Establish a 2,068 SF Childcare Center with an Outdoor Play Area at 3468 Citrus Street in 
the General Commercial – Heavy Commercial Zone. 
 
 Reference:  Arturo Ortuño, Assistant Planner 
 

Recommendation:  (1) Conduct the Public Hearing; and (2) Adopt a Resolution 
conditionally approving Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0004, a request to 
establish a childcare center at 3468 Citrus Street in the General Commercial – 
Heavy Commercial zone. 

 

4. Public Hearing to Consider Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0005 Regarding the Decision 
to Require a Refuse Enclosure Consistent with Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M) for on-
site Dumpsters with Building Permit B18-000-0416 at 7490 through 7496 North Avenue in the 
Heavy Commercial Zone. 
 
 Reference:  Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner 

 

Recommendation:  (1) Conduct the Public Hearing; and (2) Adopt a Resolution 
Denying Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0003, upholding the Development 
Services Director’s Decision to require a Municipal Code Compliant Refuse 
Enclosure for On-Site Dumpsters with Building Permit No. B18-000-0416 at 7490 
through 7496 North Avenue, Lemon Grove, CA. 

 
Business from the Planning Staff: 
 
Business from the Planning Commission: (Non-Action Items)  

 
Planning Commission Oral Comments and Reports on Meeting Attended at the Expense of the 
City: (Government Code Section 53232.3 (d) states that members of a Legislative Body shall provide brief 
reports on meetings attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the 
Legislative body.) 
 
Adjournment: 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the City of Lemon Grove will provide special 
accommodations for persons who require assistance to access, attend and/or participate in meetings of the 
Planning Commission.  If you require such assistance, please contact the Clerk at (619) 825-3800 or email 
schapel@lemongrove.ca.gov.  A full agenda packet is available for public review at City Hall. 

 
AFFIDAVIT OF NOTIFICATION AND POSTING  
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA     )  
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO   ) SS  
CITY OF LEMON GROVE   )  
 
I, Shelley Chapel, MMC, Planning Commission Clerk for the City of Lemon Grove, hereby declare under penalty of 
perjury that a copy of the above Agenda of the Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California, was delivered and/or notice by email not less than 72 hours before the hour of 5:30 p.m. on October 18, 2018, 
to the members of the governing agency, and caused the agenda to be posted on the City’s website at 
www.lemongrove.ca.gov and at Lemon Grove City Hall, 3232 Main Street Lemon Grove, CA 91945.  
 
/s/: Shelley Chapel 
Shelley Chapel, MMC,  
Planning Commission Clerk 



LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Item No. 1 _______  

Dept. City Manager’s Office  

Item Title: Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes 

Staff Contact: Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk  

Recommendation: 

Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes for Regular Meeting held September 24, 2018. 

 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

x Not subject to review  Negative Declaration 

 Categorical Exemption, Section        Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Public Information: 

x None  Newsletter article  Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

 Notice published in local newspaper  Neighborhood meeting 

Attachments: 

 

None. 

  





 
City of Lemon Grove Planning Commission Minutes September 24, 2018 
 

2 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF 
THE LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 

MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 
 
 
Call To Order: 
Chair Bailey called the Regular Meeting to order at 6:03 p.m.  
 
Roll Call by Clerk Chapel. 

Present: Chair Bailey, Vice-Chair Browne, Commissioner LeBaron, Commissioner Relucio, 
and Commissioner Smith.   

Absent:    None.   
 
Staff Members Present: 
Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner, Arturo Ortuño, Assistant Planner, Shelley Chapel, City Clerk, 
and Claudia Tedford, CityPlace Consultant.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance: 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Vice-Chair Browne. 

 
1. Approval of the Minutes:  The minutes for the June 25, 2018 Regular Meeting were 

approved. 

Action: Motion by Commissioner Smith, seconded by Commissioner Relucio to approve      
meeting minutes.   

 
The motion passed by the following vote: 

   Ayes:     Bailey, Browne, LeBaron, Relucio, Smith 
   Absent: None. 

 

Changes to the Agenda: None. 

Public Comments: 
Appeared to comment was: Nancy Henry 
 
Consent Item: None. 

 
Public Hearing: 
 
2. Continuation of Public Hearing (AA1-800-0004, Administrative Appeal of the Development 

Services Director Determination Regarding the Expiration of the Land Use Authorization for 
a Nonconforming 15-Bed Boarding House/Independent Living Facility Located at 2555, 2561, 
and 2571 Crestline Drive in the Residential Low/Medium Zone. 

 
 Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner presented the request for continuance from September 24, 

2018 to October 22, 2018.   
 

Commissioner Smith recused himself, disclosing that he lives within the project area, and left the 
room at 6:13 p.m. and returned to the dais at 6:14 p.m. with all members present. 

 



 
City of Lemon Grove Planning Commission Minutes September 24, 2018 
 

3 
 

Action:   It was moved by Commissioner Browne and seconded by Commissioner LeBaron 
to continue the Public Hearing to October 22, 2018 without further noticing.  

 
The motion passed by the following vote: 

Ayes:   Bailey, Browne, LeBaron, Relucio 
  Noes:   None 

Abstain:  Smith 
 

3. Public Hearing to Consider Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0003; a Request to 
Establish a 6,400 SF Veterinary Clinic with Retail Sales, Indoor Kennel, and Outdoor 
Activities at 7770 Broadway in the Transit Mixed-Use (TMU) Zone of the Downtown Village 
Specific Plan. 

 
 Arturo Ortuño, Assistant Planner presented the report and PowerPoint presentation. 
 
  Chair Bailey opened the Public Hearing at 6:23 p.m. 
 

Appeared to comment were: Tom Parashos, Applicant Representative, and Sudeep Dhillon 
Applicant.  

 
During the discussion Commissioners expressed concern about the number of animals 
allowed within each enclosure, kiosk vending machines located outside, outdoor seating, 
licensing inspection timing, boarding, and surveillance. 

 
 Planner Ortuño and the applicant responded to the Commissioners questions. 
 
 Adoption of the resolution would authorize conditionally approving Conditional Use Permit 

No. CUP-180-0003, a request to establish a veterinary clinic at 7770 Broadway in the Transit 

Mixed-Use (TMU) Zone of the Downtown Village Specific Plan. 

Action:  The public hearing was closed at 6:36 p.m. on a motion by Commissioner Relucio 
and second by Commissioner LeBaron to adopt Resolution No. 18-02. 

 
   The motion passed by the following vote: 
  Ayes:  Bailey, Browne, LeBaron, Relucio, Smith 
  Noes:  None 

 
4. Separation Findings for Discretionary Permits 
 
 Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner introduced Claudia Tedford, with CityPlace who gave the 

report and the PowerPoint Presentation. 
 
 Chair Bailey opened the Public Hearing at 6:42 p.m. 
 

Appeared to comment was: John L. Wood 
 

During the discussion Commissioners expressed concern about the measurement of 
distance and the timing of findings and application.   

 
Planner Viglione, and Consultant Tedford responded to the Commissions questions. 



 
City of Lemon Grove Planning Commission Minutes September 24, 2018 
 

4 
 

Review Proposed Amendments to Zoning Code Application Procedures to Include Early 
Separation Findings for Discretionary Permits, and Provide a Recommendation to the City 
Council. Direction to staff to draft Ordinance to present to the City Council. 

 
Action: The public hearing was closed at 7:23 p.m. by Chair Bailey. The Commission 

provided direct to staff including suggested amendments to the Draft Ordinance.  
On a motion by Commissioner Smith and second by Commissioner Relucio.   

 The motion passed by the following vote: 
  Ayes:  Bailey, Browne, LeBaron, Relucio, Smith 

Noes:  None 
 
 Amendments to include: The Planning Commission endorsed staff’s recommendation with 

the following amendment to Section 17.28.020(F)(2) which is on Attachment B, page 7 of the 
report; and, 

 

Affected Property Owners. The notice shall be mailed to all real property owners consistent 

with separation findings, or at an appropriate legal distance from all exterior boundaries of 

the subject property at least ten days prior to the decision. Notices shall be mailed using the 

names and addresses of the owners as shown on the latest equalized assessment roll in the 

office of the county assessor. Where the address of such owner is not shown on such 

assessment roll, failure to send notice by mail to such property owner shall not invalidate any 

proceedings in connection with such action. In the event that the number of owners to whom 

notice would be sent according to this subsection is greater than one thousand, then notices 

may, instead, be given by placing a display advertisement of at least one-eighth page in a 

newspaper having general circulation within the affected area 

 Staff also cautioned the Planning Commission that the recommendation would need to be 

vetted by the City Attorney. 

Business from the Planning Staff: None. 
 
Business from the Planning Commission: None. 
 
Planning Commission Oral Comments & Reports on Meetings Attended At City Expense 

(G.C. 53232.3(d)):  None. 
 
Adjournment:   
On a motion by Vice-Chair Browne and second by Commissioner Relucio.   
 The motion passed by the following vote to adjourn the meeting: 
  Ayes:  Bailey, Browne, LeBaron, Relucio, Smith 
  Noes:  None 
 
There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned at 
7:35 p.m. to a meeting to be held Monday, October 22, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. in the Lemon Grove 
Community Center located at 3146 School Lane, for a Regular meeting.  
 
 
________________________________________ 
Shelley Chapel, MMC 
City Clerk  



-1- 

LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Item No. __ 2 ) _ __ 
Mtg. Date __October 22, 2018__  
Dept. __Development Services Department__ 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004 of the 
Development Services Director Determination Regarding the Expiration of the 
Land Use Authorization for a Nonconforming 15-Bed Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility Located at 2555, 2561, and 2571 Crestline 
Drive in the Residential Low/Medium Zone. 

Staff Contact: Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner 

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct the public hearing; and 
2) Either adopt a Resolution (Attachment B) denying Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-

0004, upholding the Development Services Director’s decision that the Land Use 
Authorization for a nonconforming 15-bed Boarding House/Independent Living Facility or 
adopt a Resolution (Attachment C) approving Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004, 
overturning the Development Services Director’s decision.  

Item Summary: 
On August 8, 2018, the Development Services Director notified the owner of 2555, 2561, and 
2571 Crestline Drive that the Land Use Authorization for the 15-bed Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility in the Residential Low/Medium (RLM) Zone had expired due 
to its discontinuation for a 12-month period. The RLM Zone does not permit these facilities and 
as such the lawfully established facility must not cease operations for a continuous period of 12 
months or the legal nonconforming Land Use Authorization expires according to Section 
17.24.090(D) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code (LGMC). Section 17.24.090(D) also requires 
that future use of the property conform to RLM Zoning District regulations upon expiration of the 
Land Use Authorization. On August 16, 2018, Matthew Philbin, filed an appeal and request for 
public hearing on behalf of Anthem Real Estate Ventures Inc. as provided in LGMC Section 
17.28.020(I). The Planning Commission continued this item to the October 22, 2018 agenda at 
the September 24, 2018 Planning Commission meeting. 

Fiscal Impact: 
No fiscal impact. 

Environmental Review: 
 Not subject to review 
 Categorically Exempt 

  Negative Declaration 
  Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Public Information: 
 None                          Newsletter article 
 Notice published in local newspaper 

 Notice to property owners within 500 ft. 
 Neighborhood meeting 



Attachments: 
A. Staff Report 
B. Resolution of Denial 
C. Resolution of Approval  
D. Vicinity Map 
E. January 31, 2018 letter to Development Services Director entitled Statement of Occupancy 
F. August 6, 2018 Code Enforcement Correspondence 
G. August 8, 2018 Director Determination of Land Use Authorization Expiration 
H. AA1-800-0004 Appeal Form with Exhibits 
I. September 13, 2018 Letter from Appellant’s Attorney to City Staff



Attachment A 

-3- 

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL 
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.         2  

Mtg. Date     October 22, 2018 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004 of the 
Development Services Director Determination Regarding the Expiration of the 
Land Use Authorization for a Nonconforming 15-Bed Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility Located at 2555, 2561, and 2571 Crestline 
Drive in the Residential Low/Medium Zone. 

Staff Contact: Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner 

Application Summary: 

OWNER/ 
APPLICANT: 

Anthem Real Estate Ventures, Inc. 

PROPERTY 
LOCATION: 

2555-2571 Crestline Drive, APN: 480-591-14-00. The site is located 
on the east side of Crestline Drive south of Palm Street and north of 
Haven Drive. 

PROJECT AREA: 0.66 acres (28,750 square feet) 

EXISTING ZONE: Residential Low/Medium Density (RLM) 

GENERAL PLAN 
LAND USE 
DESIGNATION: 

Low Medium Density Residential 

SURROUNDING 
PROPERTIES: 

North: Residential Low Medium (RLM) 
South: Residential Low Medium (RLM) 
East: Residential Low Medium (RLM) 
West: Residential Low Medium (RLM) 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT: 

The project is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) because the appeal does not constitute a “project” as 
defined by Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines. 

 

Background: 

In 1961, the County of San Diego Board of Supervisors granted a Special Use Permit (P61-16) 
for a residential care facility for 16 residents at 2545, 2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive (two 
properties). The facility constructed at 2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive was 5,832 square 
feet in floor area. 



Attachment A 

-4- 
 

In April 1979, a complaint revealed the site was licensed by the State for 40 residents without 
local authorization from the City of Lemon Grove. 

In August 1979, the Planning Commission denied a request for 40 residents on-site and required 
the facility to reduce the number of residents to 16 as authorized by Special Use Permit P61-16.  

In 2011, as a result of a lender inquiry, the Community Development Director determined the use 
of the northerly portion of the site (2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive) as an independent living 
facility was allowed to continue. There was no specified number of residents or beds. 

In 2014, the property owner, Ms. Aileen Boren, sold 2545 Crestline (southerly portion) to City 
Redevelopment Inc. The property was subsequently converted to a 22 bedroom boarding house 
and after complaints were received, the Code Enforcement Division required the new property 
owner to convert the facility back to the permitted five bedroom single-family residence. City 
Redevelopment Inc. appealed to the City Council and the Director determination was upheld.  

In March 2017, as a result of a lender inquiry, the Development Services Director determined the 
use of the northerly portion of the site (2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive) as an independent 
living facility was allowed to continue provided the number of beds did not exceed 16 and the 
number of bedrooms did not exceed 15.  

In April 2017, upon further investigation of County Assessor historical construction records 
received by a potential buyer, the Development Services Director determined the use of the 
northerly portion of the site (2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive) as an independent living facility 
was allowed to continue provided the number of beds did not exceed 15 and the number of 
bedrooms did not exceed 14 as a result of an unpermitted garage conversion.  

In July 2017, the property owner, Ms. Aileen Boren, sold 2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive to 
Mr. Matthew Philbin of Anthem Real Estate Ventures, Inc.  

In December 2017, after consultations with staff about available options, Mr. Philbin submitted a 
Zoning Clearance application in accordance with Section 17.24.090(P) to convert a 
nonconforming 15 bed and 14 bedroom independent living facility with shared bathroom and 
kitchen facilities to nonconforming 15 multi-family dwelling units. 

On January 31, 2018, Mr. Philbin sent a letter to the Development Services Director stating that 
the eight (8) tenants previously occupying the property vacated the premises in July and August 
of 2017. The Letter further stated that the former owner, Ms. Aileen Boren, occupied the property 
until September 2017 while her son, Mr. Bud Boren, vacated the premises on January 8, 2018 
leaving the property unoccupied (Attachment E). 

On May 15, 2018, the City Council held a Public Hearing for, and ultimately denied, the Zoning 
Clearance application for the proposed change in use from independent living facility to multi-
family apartments. 



Attachment A 

-5- 

On August 2, 2018, Code Enforcement Officer Paolo Romero toured the subject property. Code 
Enforcement Officer Romero did not observe any beds in the main facility building at 2571 
Crestline and was informed that no tenants occupied that building. Code Enforcement Officer 
Romero was not shown any other structure on-site. 

On August 6, 2018, Mr. Philbin corresponded with Code Enforcement Officer Paolo Romero via 
email and indicated that he was nearing an agreement with a non-profit organization to lease the 
units and manage supportive services but that details would be provided once “sorted out” 
(Attachment F). 

On August 8, 2018, former Development Services Director David De Vries sent a letter to Mr. 
Philbin informing him that Land Use Authorization for the nonconforming Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility expired due to discontinuation for 12 months in accordance 
with Section 17.24.090(D) (Attachment G). In his determination letter, Mr. De Vries cited Mr. 
Philbin’s aforementioned correspondences with staff dated January 31, 2018 and August 6, 2018. 

On August 16, 2018, Mr. Philbin filed Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004 on behalf of 
Anthem Real Estate Ventures appealing the determination of the Development Services Director 
(Attachment H). 

On September 13, 2018, Steven J. Roberts of Sollertis sent a letter with exhibits to City Staff on 
behalf of client Anthem Real Estate Ventures to support and provide additional evidence for 
Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004 (Attachment I). 

 

Discussion 

The Residential Low/Medium (RLM) density zone in Section 17.16.020 of the Lemon Grove 
Municipal Code (LGMC) is intended to provide for small lot single-family development. The RLM 
zone permits single-family dwellings, residential care facilities for six or fewer persons, and parks 
and play grounds by right. The RLM zone regulations also accommodate public service and utility 
structures, churches and schools, and residential care facilities for seven or more persons through 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit application. Boarding Houses/Independent Living Facilities 
are not permitted in the Residential Low/Medium Zone. Uses which are not permitted by the 
regulations of the zone cannot be established therein. 

However uses of land which were legally established prior to the adoption of the Lemon Grove 
Zoning Ordinance, are considered legal nonconforming and can be continued though the 
particular use may fail to conform to the current regulations of the zone per LGMC Section 
17.24.090(C). The authorization to continue such a nonconforming use is not without limitation 
though, as Section 17.24.090(D requires any subsequent use of land to conform strictly to the 
regulations of the applicable zone when a nonconforming use wholly discontinued or abandoned 
for a continuous period of twelve months. 

The subject Boarding House/Independent Living Facility was legally established by County of San 
Diego Special Use Permit P61-16 prior to the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance with the City’s 
incorporation and is therefore considered a legal nonconforming use per the LGMC. The 



Attachment A 

-6- 
 

authorization to maintain the use of the property in accordance with Special Use Permit P61-16 
was reaffirmed on multiple occasions, most recently in written correspondence from the 
Development Services Director on April 17, 2017, due to continued operation of the Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility. 

In early August 2018, Code Enforcement Officer Romero’s inspection of the property and his 
correspondence with Mr. Philbin of Anthem Real Estate Ventures Inc., revealed that no tenants 
resided in the main building of the Boarding House/Independent Living Facility. Since the January 
31, 2018 letter to the Development Services Director declared that the eight (8) Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility tenants vacated the premises in July and August of 2017, the 
Development Services Director concluded that operation of the Boarding House/Independent 
Living Facility had ceased from August 2017 to August 2018. According to LGMC Section 
17.24.090(D), the Development Services Director further determined that abandonment of the 
nonconforming use occurred resulting in the expiration of the Land Use Authorization for the 
Boarding House/Independent Living Facility and the requirement for future use of the property 
conform to RLM zone regulations. 

While the January 31, 2018 letter indicates that the property was occupied until January 8, 2018, 
it is Staff’s position that when the last tenants of the nonconforming Boarding House/Independent 
Living Facility vacated the premises in July and August 2017 the use as a Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility ceased. The nonconforming use was discontinued and 
replaced by the more restrictive use as a single-family dwelling and accessory rental dwelling unit 
occupied by mother and son. The use as a single-family dwelling continued until January 8, 2018 
when Bud Boren ended his occupation of the property. Succeeding correspondence and 
inspections showed that the property remained vacant between Mr. Boren’s January 8, 2018 
departure and August 6, 2018 thus completing the 12 month discontinuation and prompting the 
Development Services Director’s August 8, 2018 determination. 

Only after the Development Services Director determination was sent to Anthem Real Estate 
Ventures were records to the contrary provided. These records include a letter, sworn declaration, 
and lease, showing that Paul Hoyt has resided on the property since May 1, 2018 (Attachments 
H & I). Similarly, a lease and sworn declaration were also provided with these records for Kevin 
Philbin and indicate that he has been on the property since June 24, 2018 (Attachment I). The 
occupation of the property by these two separate individuals in separate units, is consistent with 
the more restrictive use of the property as a single-family dwelling and accessory rental dwelling 
unit and constitutes discontinuation per Staff’s aforementioned interpretation.  

Also among these records however is the sworn declaration from David Sharp, a former resident 
of the Boarding House/Independent Living Facility (Attachment I). In his declaration Mr. Sharp 
states that he was among the final tenants to vacate the Boarding House/Independent Living 
facility between August 28, 2017 and August 30, 2017. If the statements in the declarations are 
assumed to be true, then the period of discontinuation would not total 12 months as additional 
sworn declarations and leases provided with these records show that John Feldman and Sharon 
Johnson began occupying the property on August 18 and August 19, 2018. Should the period of 
discontinuation be less than 12 months then abandonment did not occur and the use may 
continue in accordance 17.24.090(C). 

Appeal Procedures 
In accordance with LGMC Section 17.27.020(I), any applicant or other interested person who is 
dissatisfied with the denial, approval, conditional approval, or other application decision made in 
the administration of this title may appeal the decision. Decisions made by the Development 



Attachment A 

-7- 

Services Director may be appealed to the Planning Commission. Decisions made by the Planning 
Commission may be appealed to the City Council. Decisions made by the City Council are final. 
Appeal applications, accompanied by the filing fee, must be filed within ten days following the 
date a decision is made, on forms provided by the Development Services Department. 
In addition, this public hearing will be considered a de novo hearing and decisions shall be based 
only upon on the evidence presented in this staff report and at the public hearing and shall not be 
based upon any prior factual findings or legal conclusions. 

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the September 13, 2018 edition of the 
East County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property. 
At the September 24, 2018 Planning Commission meeting, the Planning Commission continued 
the agenda item to the October 22, 2018 Planning Commission meeting without additional public 
notice in accordance with 17.28.020(G). No comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing 
were received by staff prior to the finalization of the staff report. Comments received after staff 
report finalization will be provided to the Planning Commission during public hearing. 

Conclusion: 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct the public hearing and either adopt a 
Resolution (Attachment B) denying Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004, upholding the 
Development Services Director’s decision that the Land Use Authorization for a nonconforming 
15-bed Boarding House/Independent Living Facility at 2555 through 2571 Crestline Drive, Lemon 
Grove California is expired or adopt a Resolution (Attachment C) approving Administrative Appeal 
No. AA1-800-0004, overturning the Development Services Director’s decision.  
 





Attachment B 
 

-9- 

RESOLUTION NO.       

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
DENYING ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL AA1-800-0004, UPHOLDING THE DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES DIRECTOR’S DETERMINATION THAT THE LAND USE AUTHORIZATION IS 
EXPIRED FOR THE NONCONFORMING 15 BED BOARDING HOUSE/INDEPENDENT LIVING 
FACILITY AT 2555, 2561, AND 2571 CRESTLINE DRIVE, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.  

 
 

WHEREAS, Anthem Real Estate Ventures purchased the nonconforming 15 Bed 
Boarding House/Independent Living Facility at 2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive, Lemon 
Grove, California.; and 

WHEREAS, the use of the property at 2551, 2561, and 2571 Crestline Drive, Lemon 
Grove, California as a Boarding House/Independent Living Facility ceased in August of 2017 upon 
vacation of the premises by Boarding House/Independent Living Facility tenants as documented 
in the January 31, 2018 letter from Mr. Matthew Philbin of Anthem Real Estate Ventures to the 
Development Services Director entitled Statement of Occupancy; and 

WHEREAS, the use of the property as a Boarding House/Independent Living Facility had 
not resumed by August of 2018 as verified during inspection of the premises by Code 
Enforcement Officer Paolo Romero on August 2, 2018 and in email correspondence between 
Code Enforcement Officer Romero on August 6, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, Section 17.24.090(D) states that if any nonconforming use is wholly 
discontinued or abandoned for a continuous period of twelve months, any subsequent use of such 
land or building shall conform to the regulations specified for the district in which such land or 
building is located; and 

WHEREAS, the City has found that this Administrative Appeal is not subject to the 
environmental review requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines because it does not constitute a “project” as defined by Section 15378 of the CEQA 
Guidelines ; and 

WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the September 13, 
2018 edition of the East County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of 
the subject property 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, WITH THE ABOVE FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
HEREIN, that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby:  
SECTION 1.  Denies Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004 filed by Matthew Philbin on behalf 
of Anthem Real Estate Ventures based on the above-findings; and 
SECTION 2.  Upholds the Development Services Director’s August 8, 2018 determination that the 
Land Use Authorization that the Land Use Authorization for the nonconforming 15 bed Boarding 
House/Independent Living Facility at 2555, 2561, and 2571 Crestline Drive is expired. 

 





Attachment C 
 

-11- 

RESOLUTION NO.       

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
APPROVING ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL AA1-800-0004, OVERTURNING THE 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR’S DETERMINATION THAT THE LAND USE 
AUTHORIZATION IS EXPIRED FOR THE NONCONFORMING 15 BED BOARDING 
HOUSE/INDEPENDENT LIVING FACILITY AT 2555, 2561, AND 2571 CRESTLINE DRIVE, 
LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.  

 
 

WHEREAS, Anthem Real Estate Ventures purchased the nonconforming 15 Bed 
Boarding House/Independent Living Facility at 2555, 2561 and 2571 Crestline Drive, Lemon 
Grove, California.; and 

WHEREAS, the nonconforming Boarding House/Independent Living Facility at 2551, 
2561, and 2571 Crestline Drive, Lemon Grove, California was temporarily discontinued for a 
period of less than 12 months beginning on, or about, August 28, 2017 and ending August 18, 
2018; and 

WHEREAS, Section 17.24.090(C) states that legally established nonconforming uses of 
land existing at the time of the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance may be continued though the 
particular use, building, or structure may not conform to the regulations of the zone; and 

WHEREAS, Section 17.24.090(D) states that a legal nonconforming use may persist until 
such time as it is wholly discontinued or abandoned for a continuous period of twelve months; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City has found that this Administrative Appeal is not subject to the 
environmental review requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines because it does not constitute a “project” as defined by Section 15378 of the CEQA 
Guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the September 13, 
2018 edition of the East County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of 
the subject property 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, WITH THE ABOVE FINDINGS INCORPORATED 
HEREIN, that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby:  
SECTION 1.  Approves Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0004 filed by Matthew Philbin on behalf 
of Anthem Real Estate Ventures based on the above-findings; and 
SECTION 2.  Overturns the Development Services Director’s August 8, 2018 determination that 

the Land Use Authorization that the Land Use Authorization for the nonconforming 15 bed 
Boarding House/Independent Living Facility at 2555, 2561, and 2571 Crestline Drive is expired.





At
ta

ch
m

en
t D

  

-1
3-

 





Attachment E 
 

-15- 

 
 
 
 





Attachment F 
 

-17- 

 





Attachment G 
 

-19- 

 





Attachment H 
 

-21- 

 



Attachment H 

-22- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-23- 



Attachment H 

-24- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-25- 



Attachment H 

-26- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-27- 





Attachment H 

-28- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-29- 



Attachment H 

-30- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-31- 



Attachment H 

-32- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-33- 



Attachment H 

-34- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-35- 



Attachment H 

-36- 
 



Attachment H 
 

-37- 





Attachment I 
 

-39- 



Attachment I 

-40- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-41- 



Attachment I 

-42- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-43- 



Attachment I 

-44- 
 





Attachment I 
 

-45- 



Attachment I 

-46- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-47- 



Attachment I 

-48- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-49- 



Attachment I 

-50- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-51- 





Attachment I 

-52- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-53- 



Attachment I 

-54- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-55- 



Attachment I 

-56- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-57- 



Attachment I 

-58- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-59- 



Attachment I 

-60- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-61- 



Attachment I 

-62- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-63- 



Attachment I 

-64- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-65- 



Attachment I 

-66- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-67- 



Attachment I 

-68- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-69- 



Attachment I 

-70- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-71- 



Attachment I 

-72- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-73- 



Attachment I 

-74- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-75- 



Attachment I 

-76- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-77- 



Attachment I 

-78- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-79- 



Attachment I 

-80- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-81- 



Attachment I 

-82- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-83- 



Attachment I 

-84- 
 



Attachment I 
 

-85- 

 



Attachment I 

-86- 
 

 



-1- 

LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Item No. __ 3 __ 
Mtg. Date __October 22, 2018__  
Dept. __Development Services Department__ 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0004; a 
Request to Establish a 2,068 SF Childcare Center with an Outdoor Play Area 
at 3468 Citrus Street in the General Commercial – Heavy Commercial Zone. 

Staff Contact: Arturo Ortuño, Assistant Planner 
    

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct the public hearing; and 
2) Adopt a Resolution (Attachment B) conditionally approving Conditional Use Permit No. 

CUP-180-0004, a request to establish a childcare center at 3468 Citrus Street in the 
General Commercial – Heavy Commercial zone. 

Item Summary: 
On July 23, 2018, the applicant submitted an application for Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-
180-0004. The project is a request to establish a 2,068 sq. ft. childcare center serving up to 
32 toddlers and preschoolers with a 1,326 sq. ft. outdoor play area at 3468 Citrus Street in 
the General Commercial – Heavy Commercial zone on a 0.32-acre parcel. A childcare center 
is allowed with an approval of a conditional use permit in the General Commercial zone. 
Proposed tenant and site improvements include new landscaping and street trees.    

Fiscal Impact: 
No fiscal impact. 
Environmental Review: 
☐ Not subject to review 
☒ Categorically Exempt, Section 15301 

☐  Negative Declaration 
☐  Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Public Information: 
☐ None                         ☐ Newsletter article 
☒ Notice published in local newspaper 

☒ Notice to property owners within 500 ft. 
☐ Neighborhood meeting 

 
Attachments: 
A. Staff Report    
B. Resolution of Conditional Approval  
C. Vicinity Map 
D. Tentative Schedule  
E. Tentative Breakfast/Lunch Menu 
F. Letter of Support, dated October 18, 2018 
G. Exhibit A – Project Plans 
 





Attachment A 
 

LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.        3      

Mtg. Date     October 22, 2018 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0004; a 
Request to Establish a 2,068 SF Childcare Center with an Outdoor Play Area 
at 3468 Citrus Street in the General Commercial – Heavy Commercial Zone. 

Staff Contact: Arturo Ortuño, Assistant Planner 
   

Application Summary: 

APPLICANT: Blanca Brown 

PROPERTY 
LOCATION: 

3468 Citrus Street, APN: 479-042-32-00. The site is located on the 
west side of Citrus, between Broadway and North Ave.    

PROJECT AREA: 0.32 acres (13,813 square feet) 

EXISTING ZONE: General Commercial (GC) – Heavy Commercial (HC) 

GENERAL PLAN 
LAND USE 
DESIGNATION: 

Retail Commercial within the Special Treatment Area III (Regional 
Commercial) 

SURROUNDING 
PROPERTIES: 

North: GC - HC  
South: GC - HC  
East: GC - HC 
West: GC - HC 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT: 

The project is Categorically Exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act Section 15301 (Existing Facilities), Class 
1. Mitigation measures are not required and no environmental 
impact is anticipated.  

 



Attachment A 
 

-3- 

Background 

The property at 3468 Citrus Street is a 27,007 sq. ft. (0.62 gross acre) rectangular parcel with 
an existing two-story 7,739 sq. ft. commercial building, originally developed with 3,781 sq. ft. of 
warehouse space on the first floor (Suites A through C) and 3,425 sq. ft. of office space on the 
second floor (Suites D through K). On August 1, 2008, City staff approved a holistic care center 
(Lemon Grove Holistic Care Center) at the subject property that occupied Suite A. The care 
center provided services such as hypnotherapy, massage therapy, and acupuncture. The 
business license for the care center expired on December 31, 2015. The General Commercial 
zone allows “personal services” that provide a variety of services associated with personal 
grooming or adornment, health maintenance, or well-being as a permitted use. On December 
30, 2010, City staff approved a realty company (Hawkins Realty) to occupy Suite B. The 
business license for the realty company expired December 31, 2017. Suite C, which located at 
the rear of the property, adjacent to Suites A and B, is currently vacant.  

On July 23, 2018, the applicant, Blanca Brown, submitted an application for a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP-180-0004), to establish a 2,068 sq. ft. childcare center serving up to 32 toddlers 
and preschoolers with a 1,326 sq. ft. outdoor play area located at 3468 Citrus Street in the 
General Commercial – Heavy Commercial zone. The City of Lemon Grove found the application 
to be complete on September 17, 2018.  

Discussion 

Land Use Analysis 

The subject property is located in the General Commercial (GC) – Heavy Commercial (HC) 
zone that is also within the Special Treatment Area (STA) III overlay. In accordance with the 
General Plan, STA III is planned for continued redevelopment with large retail stores. Uses 
within this STA shall serve both local residents and attract shoppers from adjacent communities. 
Until new land use regulations are developed to implement the regional commercial policies of 
the general plan, the use, and change of use, of existing developed properties shall be 
governed by the regulations of the current underlying zoning. In accordance with the Municipal 
Code, where conflicts occur between regulations, the more restrictive of any regulations shall 
apply. The General Commercial allows “Day Care Centers” that provides part-time care, for less 
than 24-hours per day, located in a commercial zone, with an approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit. The Municipal Code defines a “Day Care Center” as a day care, regardless of size or 
capacity that is located in a commercial zone or commercial structure.   

The proposed land use will convert Suite A and B, a 2,068 sq. ft. space with two (2) existing 
restrooms located on the first floor, into a childcare center. The childcare center would include:   

● Two (2) classrooms (350 sq. ft. and 305 sq. ft.); and  

● One (1) 210 sq. ft. toddler room; and  

● One (1) office and one (1) kitchen; and  

● A 1,326 sq. ft. outdoor play area that includes a sandbox, bike path made up of 
decomposed granite, raised garden beds, and wood bench seating.  



Attachment A 
 
The mission of the Lemon Grove Childcare Center is to provide a high quality setting to toddlers 
and preschoolers, where children receive education and care. The Lemon Grove Childcare 
Center will use an active learning approach that allows opportunities for practicing social 
interaction and relationship building skills. The learning environment will aim to encourage 
children’s curiosity and initiative by adults who actively frame their learning in a group setting. All 
areas of curriculum will support the California Early Learning and Development System. The 
California Preschool Foundations and Pearson Opening World of Learning (OWL) will be the 
framework of the curriculum. OWL prepares children for kindergarten through playful purposeful 
and individualized instructions. OWL also develops language and early literacy skills in the 
context of research-based content including math, science and social skills. The Director has 
the responsibility of hiring all teachers and staff with their respective assignments. Teachers 
shall complete all qualification requirements according to the Childcare Center General 
Licensing Requirements under Title 22 of the State of California Health and Human Services 
Agency Department of Social Services, to include, but not limited to, a background clearance, 
up to date immunizations and proper credentialing by the California Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing. Enrollment of toddlers and preschoolers shall be in accordance with the 
guidelines established by the Department of Social Services, Community Care Licensing 
Division. Enrollment priority shall be on a first come first served basis and second priority given 
to siblings of the same household. Required documents shall include birth certificate to verify 
age, current physical, and current immunization record.  

The proposed childcare center intends to serve up to 32 toddlers and preschoolers ranging from 
18 months to five years of age. Staff will consist of three teachers and one administrator at any 
given time. Proposed hours of operation will be from 7:00 am to 5:30 pm, Monday through 
Friday (Attachment D). Meals will be either prepared off-site by Neighborhood House 
Association (NHA) or prepared at the on-site kitchen. The menu will be posted in the 
classrooms for families to view (Attachment E). No outside food will be permitted into the 
center unless authorized by the administration. Outdoor playtime will occur twice a day with a 
total time of one hour and fifteen minutes. A proposed open fence will secure the 1,326 sq. ft. 
outdoor play area. City staff shall determine appropriate height and material for the proposed 
fence.  

Off-Street Parking 

The required off-street parking requirements and the parking provided by the project are as 
follows:  

Use Size Parking Ratio Required Parking 

Institutional (K-12) 2 classrooms 2 spaces / classroom 4 spaces 

Office 3,425 sq. ft. 1 space / 500 sq. ft. 6.85 = 6 spaces 

Warehouse 1,713 sq. ft. 1 space / 500 sq. ft. 3.42 = 3 spaces 

  Total Required: 13 

  Provided: 19 

 



Attachment A 
 

-5- 

 

The proposed project will be using the existing parking layout with the exception of removing 
one (1) off-street parking space to relocate the existing trash enclosure, for a total of 19 off-
street parking spaces, including one (1) ADA accessible parking space. The parking spaces 
provided exceed the minimum required parking for an existing 7,739 square feet building. Since 
the building is less than 10,000 square feet, there is no loading space requirement.     

Landscape      

The required landscape area and the landscape area proposed by the project are as follows:  

Landscape Requirements Required Provided 

Min. 10% Landscape Area 1,381 sq. ft. ± 1,600 sq. ft.  

Min. 25% Vegetated Plant Materials 400 sq. ft.  ± 1,000 sq. ft. 

Conditions for the proposed project will require that all landscaping be well maintained and 
adequately watered at all times.    

Screening 

An existing trash container is currently screened by a solid masonry wall located at the eastern 
portion of the lot, adjacent to the driveway entrance. Location of the proposed play area resulted 
in the relocation of the trash enclosure. Relocation of the trash enclosure will result in removing 
one (1) off-street parking space. Design of the trash enclosure shall be in accordance with 
Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M).    

Street Improvements  

The project is located on the west side of Citrus Street, between Broadway and North Avenue. 
There is an existing curb, gutter and sidewalk, and all utilities fronting the property are placed 
underground. Proposed street improvements include four (4) twenty-four inch box street trees, 
installed at a rate of one tree per thirty linear feet of street frontage along the subject property.  

Public Information: 

The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the October 11, 2018 edition of the 
East County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject 
property. The City of Lemon Grove received no comments in response to the Notice of Public 
Hearing and Environmental Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. At the time of the 
public hearing, Staff will provide the Planning Commission with any comments received after the 
date this Staff report is prepared.  

Conclusion: 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct the public hearing and adopt a 
Resolution (Attachment B) conditionally approving Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0004, 
a request to establish a childcare center at 3468 Citrus Street in the General Commercial – 
Heavy Commercial zone.  





Attachment B 
 

-7- 

RESOLUTION NO.       

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
CONDITIONALLY APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP-180-0004, A 
REQUEST TO ESTABLISH A CHILDCARE CENTER WITH AN OUTDOOR PLAY AREA AT 
3468 CITRUS STREET, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.   

 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Blanca Brown, filed an application for a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP-180-0004) on July 23, 2018, a request to establish a 2,068 square foot childcare 
center (Lemon Grove Childcare Center) with a 1,326 square foot outdoor play area located at 
3468 Citrus Street, Lemon Grove, California; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed land use is allowed as a “Day Care Center” that provides part-
time care, for less than twenty-four hours per day, located in a commercial zone, with an 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed childcare center intends to serve up to 32 toddlers and 
preschoolers ranging from 18 months to five years of age. Staff will consist of three teachers 
and one administrator at any given time. Proposed hours of operation will be from 7:00 am to 
5:30 pm, Monday through Friday. Meals will be either prepared off-site by Neighborhood House 
Association (NHA) or prepared at the on-site kitchen. All areas of curriculum will support the 
California Early Learning and Development System. The California Preschool Foundations and 
Pearson Opening World of Learning (OWL) will be the framework of the curriculum; and 

WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the October 11, 
2018 edition of the East County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of 
the subject property; and  

WHEREAS, on October 22, 2018, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public 
hearing to consider Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0004; and 

WHEREAS, the City has found the proposed Conditional Use Permit to be categorically 
exempt from the environmental review requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act 
Guidelines (Section 15301, Existing Facilities); and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission determined that the following findings of fact as 
required by section 17.28.050(C) can be made as follows:  
1. The use is compatible with the neighborhood or the community; and 

a. The proposed land use is located in the General Commercial – Heavy 
Commercial zone and allows “Day Care Centers” with an approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit. The Lemon Grove Municipal Code (LGMC) defines 
“Day Care Centers” as a day care, regardless of size or capacity that is located 
in a commercial zone or commercial structure.  

2. The use is not detrimental to the health, safety, convenience or general welfare of 
persons residing or working in the vicinity; and 

a. The proposed use is categorically exempt from environmental impacts and 
no impacts are anticipated. The proposed childcare center will be required to 
meet all applicable provisions of the LGMC and conditions of approval.  
 



Attachment B 
 
3. The use complies with performance standards according to Section 17.24.080; and 

a. The proposed use complies or will be made to comply with applicable 
performance standards according to Section 17.24.080 of the LGMC 
(specifically noise, glare, traffic circulation and parking, waste, and fire 
hazards).  

4. The use is consistent with applicable provisions of the particular zoning district and with 
policies and standards of the general plan. 
a. The proposed use complies with the applicable provisions of the LGMC 

requirements and is consistent with the Retail Commercial land use 
designation of the General Plan. The proposed childcare center would promote 
a healthy, family-oriented community through appropriate land use and 
development decisions; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon 
Grove, California hereby:  
SECTION 1.  Approves Conditional Use Permit No. CUP-180-0004 and the site and 
architectural plans dated received August 14, 2018 (incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 
A), except noted herein. The approval authorizes the establishment of a childcare center with an 
outdoor play area at 3468 Citrus Street in the General Commercial – Heavy Commercial zone. 
Except as amended, the approval of this project shall be subject to the following conditions:  

A. Within five days of approval, the applicant shall comply with the following:  
1. Submit the appropriate payment for the CEQA filing fee and County Clerk 

Processing Fee (Categorical Exemption).  
2. Pay all outstanding fees for City permits related to this project. 

B. A building permit shall be required and obtained for proposed tenant improvements 
including electrical, plumbing and mechanical improvements. Structures and access 
shall meet current building and fire code regulations. 

1. Provide a fully dimensioned site plan, floor plan and elevations drawn to scale.  
2. An automatic fire alarm system shall be provided in all buildings used as or 

containing a Group E Day Care. 
3. Duct and air transfer openings in smoke partitions shall be provided with a 

smoke damper in Group E Day Care.  
4. Group E Day Care facilities may not be located above the first story in a building 

that is not constructed of Type I-A, I-B, II-A, II-B and III-A construction.  
5. Every enclosed gas-fired water heater or furnace in the child-care area needs to 

be protected to prevent children from making contact to those appliances. This 
doesn’t apply to kitchen stoves or ovens.  

6. Day care facilities, rooms or spaces where care is provided for more than 10 
children that are 2 years or age or less shall have access to not less than two 
exits or exit access doorways.  

7. Corridors serving more than 10 occupants in Group E day care shall be 1-Hour 
fire rated walls without sprinkler system.  



Attachment B 
 

-9- 

8. Corridor width shall not be less than 44 inches.  
9. Separate Occupancies: each space shall comply with the building code based 

on the occupancy classification of that portion of the building.  
10. Interior decorative material and furnishings shall meet the requirements in the 

2016 CA Fire Code, Chapter 8.  
11. Heartland Fire & Rescue at time of plan or permit submission will charge certain 

fees for plan review and inspections. Fees will be determined at time of plan 
review and/or inspections.  

12. The construction drawings or changes to the project may require additional 
conditions not noted in this resolution in which case, applicable codes would 
apply.  

C. Prior to issuance of a building permit for the use authorized by this Conditional Use 
Permit, the applicant shall comply with the following:  

1. Comply with Conditions A through B of this Resolution.  
2. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans 

dated August 14, 2018, except as noted herein, shall be located, constructed 
and maintained substantially where they are shown in accordance with 
applicable Lemon Grove City Codes to the satisfaction of the Development 
Services Director. 

3. The applicant shall provide occupant load and exiting for each classroom.  
4. Existing bathrooms shall comply with California Building Code (CBC), Chapter 

11B. 
5. The applicant shall provide on the plans all special requirements for a E 

occupancy daycare facility. Safe dispersal area, frontage or clearance at entry 
(see CBC Section 452).  

6. The applicant shall provide occupancy and appropriate fire separation per CBC 
Table 508.4 for all adjacent tenant spaces.  

7. The applicant shall provide a letter indicating any hazardous materials to be 
used or stored on site for the childcare center. This does not include normal 
business cleaning materials however; they must be in a limited quantity. 

8. The applicant shall clarify whether or not the building is equipped with a fire 
alarm system and note existing and proposed systems. A licensed contractor (C-
10) is required to install or make adjustments to a fire alarm system. 

9. All improvements shall comply with Title 15 including 2016 Building and Fire 
Codes and ADA accessibility requirements. 

D. Prior to requesting a final inspection and occupancy of the structure, the applicant shall 
comply with the following: 

1. Comply with Conditions A through C of this Resolution. 
2. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans 

dated August 14, 2018, except as noted herein, shall be located, constructed 
and maintained substantially where they are shown in accordance with 
applicable Lemon Grove City Codes to the satisfaction of the Development 
Services Director. 



Attachment B 
 

3. The most recent adopted California Fire Codes and Standards. 
4. A fire inspection is required prior to a certificate of occupancy or business 

license being issued. The applicant shall ensure the childcare center is set up 
and ready for operation prior to the fire inspection. 

5. Current standards for parking areas and striping. Damaged paving shall be 
repaired and maintained in a good condition consistent with LGMC Section 
17.24.010. Designated parking spaces are prohibited on-site. 

6. Execute an Encroachment, Maintenance, and Removal Agreement for the street 
trees and irrigation along the Citrus Street frontage. The City will draft the 
document. Provide the City with an 8 ½” x 11” exhibit showing and labeling the 
locations of the trees and irrigation system. 

7. The applicant shall comply with all of the requirements of the appropriate State 
and County licensing agencies and shall provide the Development Services 
Department with evidence of said compliance.  

8. Installation. Gates serving multi-family, assembly, educational, hazardous, 
institutional, or storage structures must be automatic and meet UL 325 and 
ASTM F 2200 standards. Knox brand key-operated electric key switch keyed to 
Heartland Fire & Rescue specification are required. The Knox switch shall 
override all gate functions and open the gate. Other access control systems 
such as Opticom, siren, etc. shall be permitted with the approval of Heartland 
Fire & Rescue.  

9. All flammable vegetation shall be removed from each building site with slopes 
less than 15% at a minimum distance of 30-feet from all structures or to the 
property line, whichever is less.  

10. Facility shall provide at least one portable fire extinguisher with a 2-A: 10-B: C 
rating for every 75-feet of travel. Fire extinguisher shall be mounted up to 5-feet 
from the finished floor and it must be in an accessible area.  

11. An approved Fire Safety and Evacuation Plan is required. 
12. Fire lane designation shall be required for all fire access roadways as 

determined by Heartland Fire & Rescue. Posted signs which state “FIRE LANE, 
NO PARKING” shall be installed every 50 feet. Curbs shall be painted red and 
stenciled with white letters indicating the same on the face and top of any curb 
as directed by Heartland Fire & Rescue. All fire lanes shall be marked and 
identified prior to Certificate of Occupancy.  

13. Permanent address shall be posted to meet the minimum requirements: 
minimum 8 inches in height with one-half inch stroke, visible from the street and 
have a contrasting background. Additional numbers may be required for 
visibility.  

14. Exit signs shall be installed and maintained per the 2016 CA Fire Code, Chapter 
10.  

E. Upon establishment of use in reliance with this Conditional Use Permit, the applicant 
shall comply with the following:  

1. Comply with Conditions A through D of this Resolution. 



Attachment B 
 

-11- 

2. All physical elements of the proposed project shown on the approved plans 
dated August 16, 2018, except as noted herein, shall be located, constructed 
and maintained substantially where they are shown in accordance with 
applicable Lemon Grove City Codes to the satisfaction of the Development 
Services Director and City Engineer.  

3. The hours of operation shall be restricted from 7:00 A.M. to 5:30 P.M., five (5) 
days a week only (Monday through Friday).  

4. The use of the outdoor play area shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 A.M. to 
5:00 P.M.  

5. Off-street parking for child drop-off and pick-up shall be located in the existing 
parking area of the subject property.  

6. Street parking for child drop-off and pick-up is prohibited.  
7. The permittee shall obtain from the Development Services Director certification 

that specified conditions of the permit have been met.  
8. The building façade shall be well maintained at all times. 
9. Landscape shall be maintained in good condition at all times.  
10. This project approval does not include signage, and sign permits shall be 

obtained prior to installation. All signs shall conform to the Municipal Code 
Section 18.12. 

11. The project shall conform to all performance standards of Municipal Code 
Section 17.24.080. 

12. Proper drainage shall be maintained throughout this property so as to prevent 
ponding and/or storage of surface water. 

13. Exit doors, including manually operated horizontal sliding doors, shall be able to 
be opened from the inside without use of a key or any special knowledge or 
effort.  

14. The unlatching of any door or leaf shall not require more than one operation.  
 

F. The terms and conditions of the Conditional Use Permit shall be binding upon the 
permittee and all persons, firms, and corporations having an interest in the property 
subject to this Conditional Use Permit and the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors, and assigns of each of them, including municipal corporations, public 
agencies, and districts. 

G. This Conditional Use Permit expires October 22, 2019 (or such longer period as may be 
approved by the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon Grove prior to said 
expiration date) unless all requirements of this Conditional Use Permit have been met 
prior to said expiration date. 





Attachment C 
 

-13- 

 

 
 





Attachment D 
 

-15- 

 
 
 

 





Attachment E 
 

-17- 

 
 
 





Attachment F 
 

-19- 

 
 



Attachment F 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Attachment F 
 

-21- 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Attachment G 
 

-23- 

 
EXHIBIT A – PROJECT PLANS 

Not Attached 
Enclosed in Planning Commission packet or available at City Hall for Review 



-1- 

LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Item No. __4 ___ __ 
Mtg. Date __October 22, 2018__  
Dept. __Development Services Department__ 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0005 
Regarding the Decision to Require a Refuse Enclosure Consistent with 
Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M) for on-site Dumpsters with Building 
Permit B18-000-0416 at 7490 through 7496 North Avenue in the Heavy 
Commercial Zone. 

Staff Contact: Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner 

Recommendation: 

1) Conduct the public hearing; and 
2) Adopt a Resolution (Attachment B) denying Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0003, 

upholding the Development Services Director’s Decision to require a municipal code 
compliant refuse enclosure for on-site dumpsters with Building Permit No. B18-000-0416 
(Attachment C) at 7490 through 7496 North Avenue, Lemon Grove, CA. 

Item Summary: 
During Final Planning Inspection on August 13, 2018 for Building Permits B18-000-0160 and 
B18-000-0416, Planning Staff observed that a non-compliant Trash Enclosure had been 
constructed at the existing four-unit apartment complex at 7490 through 7496 North Avenue. 
Staff issued a correction notice and the Development Services Director ultimately determined 
on August 27, 2018 that a Trash Enclosure consistent with the Refuse Enclosure Requirements 
in Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M) would be required for a dumpster to remain on the 
property prior to Planning approval of B18-000-0416. On September 6, 2018, project manager 
Jose Ortiz appealed the determination of the Development Services Director. 
 Fiscal Impact: 
No fiscal impact. 

Environmental Review: 
 Not subject to review 
 Statutorily Exempt, Section 15268 

  Negative Declaration 
  Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Public Information: 
 None                          Newsletter article 
 Notice published in local newspaper 

 Notice to property owners within 500 ft. 
 Neighborhood meeting 

Attachments: 
A. Staff Report 
B. Resolution 



C. Vicinity Map 
D. Site Photos 
E. Development Services Director Decision Letter dated August 27, 2018 
F. AA1-800-0005 Administrative Appeal Form 
G. Appellant’s Letter dated September 5, 2018 



Attachment A 

-3- 

LEMON GROVE PLANNING COMMISSION 
STAFF REPORT 

Item No.        4  

Mtg. Date     October 22, 2018 

Item Title: Public Hearing to Consider Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0005 
Regarding the Decision to Require a Refuse Enclosure Consistent with 
Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M) for on-site Dumpsters with Building 
Permit B18-000-0416 at 7490 through 7496 North Avenue in the Heavy 
Commercial Zone. 

Staff Contact: Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner 

Application Summary: 

APPLICANT: Jose L Ortiz 

OWNER: Dignora C. Torres 

PROPERTY 
LOCATION: 

7490-7496 North Avenue, APN: 480-021-23-00. The site is located 
between Buena Vista Avenue and West Street on the north side of 
North Avenue.  

PROJECT AREA: 0.27 acres (11,547 square feet) 

EXISTING ZONE: Heavy Commercial (HC) 

GENERAL PLAN 
LAND USE 
DESIGNATION: 

General Business 

SURROUNDING 
PROPERTIES: 

North: State Route 94 
South: General Commercial (GC)   
East: Heavy Commercial (HC)   
West: Heavy Commercial (HC)   

ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT: 

The project is Statutorily Exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act Section 15268 (Ministerial Projects). Mitigation measures 
are not required and no environmental impact is anticipated.  

 



Attachment A 

-4- 
 

Background 

Existing Conditions 
The subject property is a narrow 11,547 square foot (0.27 acre) lot that fronts on North Avenue. 
The property is approximately 259 feet wide and ranges in depth from approximately 33 to 55 
feet. The site is contiguous with State Route 94 to its north and, to the east, other nonconforming 
apartments in the HC zone. The existing 3,600 square foot four-unit apartment building was built 
in 1959 and occupies the center of the eastern 2/3 of the parcel. To the west of the two-story 
apartment building is a narrow yard and, on the east side, is the existing parking lot. An overhead 
San Diego Gas and Electric (SDG&E) power pole stands near the midpoint of the parking lot 
driveway. As a nonconforming residential use in a nonresidential zone, the apartment building 
cannot be expanded though it may be maintained subject to certain limitations per the provisions 
of Lemon Grove Municipal Code (LGMC) Section 17.24.090. Prior to 2018, the only Building 
Permit in City records was for a new roof and cement work in 1992. Any permits issued prior to 
the City’s incorporation are not maintained by the City. 

Project Summary 

On March 19, 2018, the City issued Building Permit B18-000-0160 for miscellaneous electrical 
and plumbing work, including: re-pipe, re-wire, water heater replacement, and drywall 
replacement for each unit in the existing apartment building at the subject address. Then, on May 
1, 2018, the City issued mechanical Building Permits for the installation of an Air Conditioning unit 
in each apartment under Record IDs B18-000-0247 through B18-000-0250. Finally, on July 19, 
2018, the City issued electrical Building Permit B18-000-0416 for a new 500 amp electrical service 
for lighting and irrigation on site. The Planning Division did not review the issuance of these 
building permits due to the nature of the work proposed on the applications. Building permits for 
miscellaneous electrical, plumbing, and mechanical work, are reviewed by the Building Division 
and are not typically referred to the Planning Division for review unless interior structural or 
exterior modifications are proposed.  

In early August 2018, the Building Inspector requested that the Planning Division inspect the site 
prior to Final Building inspection and/or grant of occupancy due to the inspector’s concerns about 
the on-site lighting installed on the building’s exterior walls and the amperage of the permitted 
electrical panel. During planning inspection of the property on August 13, 2018 Planning Staff 
observed that a metal refuse enclosure opening to a concrete pad in the right-of-way had been 
constructed in the front yard setback (Attachment D). After discussing these observations with 
the Development Services Director, staff notified the applicant via email that the following 
corrections were required: 

1. The Trash Enclosure must be modified and/or relocated to comply with the 
requirements for refuse enclosures in Section 17.24.050.M of the LGMC. The Director 
also requires that an opaque covering be provided on top of the enclosure in accordance 
with Section 17.24.050.M.1. 

2. The ramp from the trash enclosure to the street appears to be in the public right 
of way. An Encroachment, Maintenance and Removal Agreement is required for any 
improvements in the public Right-Of-Way. Please coordinate with Stephanie Boyce from 
the Engineering Division at 619-825-3811 for further details. 

In subsequent email communications, the appellant indicated that the concrete pad in the right-
of-way would be removed and that the refuse enclosure would be demolished. The appellant 



Attachment A 

-5- 

further indicated however that the dumpster would remain in the same location as it was pre-
existing, that neighboring properties maintained similar unconfined dumpsters on-site, and that a 
refuse enclosure was not required given that fewer than five (5) residential units exist on the 
property. 

Ultimately, the Development Services Director determined and relayed via letter to the appellant 
on August 27, 2018, that a refuse enclosure consistent with the Refuse Enclosure Requirements 
in LGMC Section 17.24.050(M) would be required if the on-site dumpster were to remain 
(Attachment E). The Development Services Director further resolved to withhold final approval 
of Building Permit B18-000-0416, for the new 500 amp electrical panel for lighting and irrigation 
on the property, until either construction of a compliant refuse enclosure occurs or the dumpster 
is replaced with standard curbside residential refuse carts, the standardized wheeled bins used 
by EDCO and other waste haulers. On September 6, 2018, project manager Jose Ortiz appealed 
the determination of the Development Services Director (Attachments F & G). 

During a cursory field survey of the property from North Avenue on October 10,, 2018, staff 
documented and verified that the concrete pad was removed from the public right-of-way though 
the subject refuse enclosure remains. Staff also observed that the refuse dumpsters which 
precipitated the Development Services Director determination remain in the apartment parking lot 
(Attachment D). 

Appeal Procedures 

In accordance with LGMC Section 17.27.020(I), “Any applicant or other interested person who is 
dissatisfied with the denial, approval, conditional approval, or other application decision made in 
the administration of this title may appeal the decision.” Decisions made by the Development 
Services Director may be appealed to the Planning Commission. Decisions made by the Planning 
Commission may be appealed to the City Council. Decisions made by the City Council are final. 
Appeal applications, accompanied by the filing fee, shall be filed within ten days following the date 
a decision is made, on forms provided by the Development Services Department. 
In addition, this public hearing will be considered a de novo hearing and decisions shall be based 
only upon on the evidence presented in this staff report and at the public hearing and shall not be 
based upon any prior factual findings or legal conclusions. 

Discussion 

Municipal Code Conformance 

Section 17.24.050(M)(1) of the LGMC requires all refuse containers to be screened in a masonry 
enclosure at least six (6) feet high with opaque, durable gates. Section 17.24.050(M)(1) also 
subjects refuse enclosures to an additional nine (9) standards, 17.24.050(M)(1)(a) through 
17.24.050(M)(1)(i), which describe when a refuse enclosure is necessary, and govern their 
location, appearance, construction, and maintenance. LGMC Section 17.24.050(M)(1)(a) 
specifically states: 

Masonry refuse enclosures are required on all residential, multiple residential 
developments consisting of five or more dwelling units and all commercial and industrial 
developments in excess of five thousand square feet of commercial or industrial floor 
area. Refuse enclosures are also required for commercial or industrial land uses of five 
thousand square feet of floor area or wherever commercial refuse container(s) 
(dumpsters) are used [emphasis added]. 



Attachment A 

-6- 
 

This provision is interpreted as requiring refuse enclosures in four (4) separate instances, 
including wherever commercial refuse container(s) (dumpsters) are used. Since dumpsters are 
kept on site at 7490 North Avenue, as verified during site inspections and appellant 
correspondence, a refuse enclosure must be provided according to Section 17.24.050(M)(1)(a). 

Given that a refuse enclosure is necessitated by the presence of these on-site dumpsters, the 
language in Section 17.24.050(M)(1) and subsections (a) through (i), controlling appearance, 
construction, and maintenance of said enclosures, must be observed. Despite the quality 
construction of the subject refuse enclosure, materials used in its construction do not meet the 
materials standards of the aforementioned regulations. While Section 17.24.050(M)(1) mandates 
masonry construction with neutral stucco siding and an opaque covering, required at the 
discretion of the Development Services Director, the subject enclosure on site is built from the 
same black metal fencing that fronts North Avenue and does not include a cover. Similarly, the 
subject refuse enclosure does not include the two-foot wide screening landscape planter required 
where feasible by Section 17.24.050(M)(1)(c) or the reinforced Portland cement concrete (PCC) 
pad required by Section 17.24.050(M)(1)(d). 

Conversely however, the subject refuse enclosure may conform to the provisions of LGMC 
Section 17.24.050(M)(1) and its subsections regulating refuse enclosure location. Subsection 
17.24.050(M)(1)(e) requires refuse enclosures to be located 20 feet from any public right-of-way 
where practical and subsection 17.24.050(M)(1)(b) states that refuse enclosures shall be located 
so as to provide convenient access and minimize backing maneuvers in the public right-of-way. 
If the dumpsters are placed at the rear of the parking lot, access may be difficult for waste hauling 
vehicles due to the narrow entrance created by the overhead SDG&E power pole which divides 
parking lot access. Such a placement would also necessitate backing maneuvers into the public 
right-of-way to exit the site. Constructing the refuse enclosure at the rear of the existing parking 
area may eliminate or compromise access to existing parking spaces as well.  

Section 17.16.080(G)(6) of the LGMC also confines all permitted on-site activities in the HC zone 
to enclosed spaces, which Staff interprets to include waste disposal. Only those use exceptions 
expressly permitted by the regulations of the HC zone in Section 17.16.080, or those authorized 
through official City approval, are allowed to occur in the open. The HC regulations do not provide 
an exemption for waste disposal nor did Staff find any records permitting outdoor, unenclosed 
storage of on-site dumpsters. 

Lastly, LGMC Section 8.48.060 requires application of stormwater Best Management Practices 
(BMPs) as set forth in the Lemon Grove Design BMP Manual where a use or activity may 
contribute to stormwater pollution or contamination. The Lemon Grove BMP Design Manual is a 
development planning tool incorporated into the City’s Jurisdictional Runoff Management Plan 
(JRMP), the primary means by which the City implements the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) Municipal Permit issued by the San Diego Regional Water Quality 
Control Board under Order No. R9-2013-0001. 

Lemon Grove BMP Design Manual Appendices I-1 and I-2, which are attached to all Building 
Permit applications, require the incorporation of certain best management practices (BMPs) and 
are typically reviewed by the Planning Division prior to Building Permit issuance when the project 
scope requires a Planning approval. Appendix I-1 is required with all applications while Appendix 
I-2 is only required when an impervious surface is proposed. Appendices I-1 and I-2 must be 
completed as a condition of Building Permit issuance and are signed by applicants under the 
penalty of perjury. When an impervious footprint is created as part of a project, as is done by 
construction of a new concrete pad, Appendix I-2 mandates the implementation of permanent 



Attachment A 

-7- 

BMPs, one of which is the requirement for dumpsters to be stored inside a building or a four-sided 
enclosure with structural overhead canopy.  

It may be worth noting that the appellant completed and signed appendices I-1 and I-2 in a 
contradictory fashion in his application for Building Permit B18-000-0416. The completed I-1 
Appendix indicates that the project would not create an impervious footprint which would exempt 
the project permanent BMP requirements. The completed I-2 Appendix indicates that the project 
includes impervious construction, thereby mandating the incorporation of permanent BMPs. 

Considering the aforementioned regulations, it is staff’s position that LGMC compliant refuse 
enclosure(s) are required should the dumpsters remain on the property. Compliance 
17.24.050(M) will require construction of a refuse enclosure using masonry, stucco, and a 
structural covering and incorporation of screening landscaping around the enclosure where 
feasible. A reinforced PCC pad and apron would also be required. Alternatively, replacing the 
dumpsters with curbside pickup refuse carts would negate the refuse enclosure requirement. 

Should the applicant choose to retain dumpster service, final siting of the required refuse 
enclosure can be determined prior to its construction. Reconstruction of the refuse enclosure in 
its current position fronting North Avenue may satisfy LGMC requirements with only minor 
adjustments to meet the Fire Code mandated 5 foot separation from combustible construction. 
The current location otherwise eliminates the need for backing maneuvers by waste hauling 
vehicles and could maximize convenient access to dumpsters. However, it may be impractical or 
impossible to build an adequately sized enclosure with structural overhead canopy in the current 
location due to the 6 foot height limit applicable to screening devices within the Heavy Commercial 
front yard setback in LGMC Section 17.24.050(H)(2)(a). 

General Plan Conformance 

The Development Services Director determination that the project site must comply with the 
requirements of LGMC Section 17.24.050(M) is further supported by the following General Plan 
Policies: 

1. Community Development Element: 
a. Policy 1.1: Protect and enhance established neighborhoods. 
b. Policy 1.7: Promote a healthy, family-oriented community through appropriate land 

use and development decisions. 
2. Conservation and Recreation 

a. Objective 6.0: Lower levels of pollutants in runoff. 
b. Policy 6.2: Comply with current and state water quality programs. 

Public Information: 
The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the October 11, 2018 edition of the 
East County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property. 
No comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing were received by staff prior to the 



Attachment A 

-8- 
 

finalization of the staff report. Comments received after staff report finalization will be provided to 
the Planning Commission during public hearing.  

Conclusion: 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission conduct the public hearing and adopt a 
Resolution (Attachment B) denying Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0005, upholding the 
Development Services Director’s decision to require a trash enclosure for on-site dumpsters prior 
to release of Building Permit No. B18-000-0416.



Attachment B 
 

-9- 

RESOLUTION NO.       

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE 
DENYING ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL AA1-800-0005, UPHOLDING THE DEVELOPMENT 
SERVICES DIRECTOR’S DECISION TO REQUIRE A MUNICIPAL CODE COMPLIANT 
REFUSE ENCLOSURE FOR ON-SITE DUMPSTERS WITH BUILDING PERMIT NO. B18-000-
0416 AT 7490 THROUGH 7496 NORTH AVENUE, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.  

 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Jose Ortiz, obtained multiple building permits in 2018 from the 
Building Department to replace plumbing, electrical wiring, drywall, and water heaters; and install 
air conditioning systems and a new 500 amp electrical service for lighting and irrigation at the 
existing four unit apartment building at 7490 through 7496 North Avenue, Lemon Grove, 
California; and  

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2018, Planning staff conducted a final inspection at the subject 
property and determined that a newly constructed refuse enclosure did not comply with the 
Refuse Enclosure Requirements in Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M) and that 
compliance would be required; and  

WHEREAS, in a letter to the applicant and property owner dated August 27, 2018, the 
Development Services Director upheld the requirement to provide a refuse enclosure for on-site 
dumpsters in accordance with Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M); and 

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2018, Jose Ortiz, the appellant, filed an administrative 
appeal, No. AA1-800-0005, of the Development Services Director’s decision; and 

WHEREAS, the City has found the project to be statutorily exempt from the environmental 
review requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines (Section 15268, 
Ministerial Projects); and 

WHEREAS, the Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the October 11, 
2018 edition of the East County Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of 
the subject property; and  

WHEREAS, on October 22, 2018, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public 
hearing to consider Administrative Appeal AA1-800-0005, an appeal of the Development Services 
Director’s decision to require a Municipal Code compliant refuse enclosure for on-site dumpsters 
with Building Permit B18-000-0416; and 

WHEREAS, a refuse enclosure is required by Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M)(1)(a) 
wherever commercial refuse containers or dumpsters are used; and 

WHEREAS, a refuse enclosure is required by the Lemon Grove BMP Design Manual I-2 
Appendix according to Municipal Code Section 8.48.060; and 

WHEREAS, the subject refuse enclosure built during the spring and summer of 2018 does 
not comply with the Refuse Enclosure Requirements in Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M); 
and 

WHEREAS, the following General Plan objectives and policies support the decision of the 
Development Services Director: 

1.  Community Development Element: 
a. Policy 1.1: Protect and enhance established neighborhoods. 



Attachment B 

-10- 
 

b. Policy 1.7: Promote a healthy, family-oriented community through appropriate land 
use and development decisions. 

2. Conservation and Recreation Element: 
a. Objective 6.0: Lower levels of pollutants in runoff. 
b. Policy 6.2: Comply with current and state water quality programs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lemon 
Grove, California hereby:  
SECTION 1.  Denies appellant Jose Ortiz’s Administrative Appeal No. AA1-800-0005; and  
SECTION 2.  Upholds the Development Services Director’s August 27, 2018 decision to require a 
refuse enclosure in conformance with Municipal Code Section 17.24.050(M), if on-site dumpsters 
are to remain, prior to final Building Department approval of Building Permit B18-000-0416 for the 
500 amp electrical service  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED: On October 22, 2018 the Planning Commission for the City of Lemon 
Grove, California adopted Resolution No._____, passed by the following vote:  
 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
                         
 
 
                                                           

   ______________________________________ 
Robert Bailey, Chair 

 
 
Attest: 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Shelley Chapel, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form:   
 
 
        
City Attorney 
.



Attachment C 
 

-11- 





Attachment D 
 

-13- 

 
 

West end of 7490-7496 North 
Avenue showing gate of subject 
refuse enclosure and demolished 
pad in right-of way. 



Attachment D 

-14- 
 

 
 
 

East end of 7490-7496 North 
Avenue showing dumpsters in 
existing parking area. 



Attachment D 
 

-15- 

 
 
 

 
 

West end of 7490-7496 North 
Avenue apartment building 
showing approximate location of 
subject refuse enclosure circa 
2009. 

Aerial Image from 2015 with 
approximate location of subject 
refuse enclosure shown in red. 





Attachment E 
 

-17- 

 





Attachment F 
 

-19- 

 

(See Attachment G) 



Attachment F 

-20- 
 

 



Attachment G 
 

-21- 

 
 


	Agenda 10-22
	Item 1 - Minutes 09-24-2018
	Blank Page

	Item 2 - AA1-800-0004 - 2555 Crestline Drive
	Item 2 - AA1-800-0004 - 2555 Crestline Drive
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Item 2 - AA1-800-0004 - 2555 Crestline Drive

	Item 3 - CUP-180-0004 - 3468 Citrus Street
	Blank Page

	Item 4 - AA1-800-0005 - 7490 North Avenue



